
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, February 06, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

***REDISTRICTING WORKSHOP - 5:00PM*** 
 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by guest of Director Harris 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Police Chief Michael Kramm 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

CONSENT 

2. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting January 17, 2023.  (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

3. Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $15,000.00 to the Texarkana Regional 

Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson   

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the City of 

Texarkana, Texas for Police Criminal Investigation Division (CID) services. (FIN) Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson and Police Chief Michael Kramm   



 

5. Adopt a Resolution reappointing City staff to the Personnel Policy Committee. (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

REGULAR 

6. Adopt a Resolution appointing Joshua Potter as Interim City Attorney. (BOD)  

7. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the Front Street 

Plaza Improvement Project. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith  

8. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with 

Turkey Creek Farms for the construction of a fence enclosing Front Street Plaza. (PWD) Parks 

and Recreation Director Adam Dalby  

9. Adopt an Ordinance confirming, updating, and correcting the annexation of certain territory 

to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas (Franks). (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

10. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards and commissions. [Airport 

Authority; Historic Commission; Library Board and Planning Commission.] (CCD)  

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Twin City Black History Association Parade - Saturday, February 11th - 10AM - Noon 

Mardi Gras Parade - Saturday, February 18th - 4PM - 6PM 

Run the Line - Sunday, February 19th - 7AM - 12:30PM 

Texarkana TOGA – 525 E. Broad Street - April 13th – 16th – 6AM – 2PM 

Centennial Time Capsule/Sesquicentennial Festival – Downtown – April 14th – 15th 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

 Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

 

Tyler Richards Public Works 5 Years 

Danny Russell TAPD 10 Years 

Travis Deel TAFD 25 Years 

Jeannie Sanders TWU 5 Years 

Justin Harwell TWU 5 Years 

Dustin Griffin TWU 5 Years 

Roberto Vazquez TWU 20 Years 

Sally McAllister TWU 35 Years 
 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting January 17, 

2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, January 17, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director 

Laney Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 

Director Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

Invocation given by Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Chief David Fletcher. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Mayor Brown stated George Matteson was resigning as City Attorney at the end of this month 

and he wished him well.  

City Attorney George Matteson said he had enjoyed working with the City.  

No one else came forward. 

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

The motion carried and the following item was approved:  

1. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting January 3, 2023.  (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

2. Resolution No. 2023-3 authorized and directed the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) Chief Kramm 

3. Resolution No. 2023-4 amended the FY2023 General Fund Budget to include the reallocation 

of FY2022 General Fund Budget for Road Projects. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards 



 

REGULAR 

4. Ordinance No. 2-2023 to prescribe a method to rotate the position of Assistant Mayor among 

the members of the Board of Directors and change to a one-year term in the following 

sequence: Ward 1, Ward 2, Ward 6, Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3. (BOD) (This item added at the 

request of Director Laney Harris) 

After a brief discussion, the motion to change the sequence order to Ward 1, Ward 6, Ward 2, 

Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3 made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer.  

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading in abbreviated form made 

by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell 

The motion carried 6-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell 

The motion carried 6-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell 

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 3-2023 repealed and superseded Ordinance No. 1-2023 and approved the 

purchase of four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Tahoe with police packages. (TAPD) Assistant Chief 

Bobby Jordon  

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director 

Hart. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 4-2023 authorized the City Manager to purchase a three-year Microsoft 

Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by all departments of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, in an amount not to exceed the annual fee of $57,356.45. (TWU) IT Director 

Brandon Uselton 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  



 

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Hollibush wanted to remind citizens about the upcoming Mardi Gras parade and there 

was no charge to enter a float.  He also stated Monjunis Restaurant set their opening date for 

January 30, 2023.  

Director Harris shared the story of how City Attorney George Matteson was hired and wished him 

good luck on his future.    

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 



 

 He said there were two options for the redistricting and there would be a workshop to 

discuss them prior to the Board meeting February 6, 2023, at 5:00PM. 

 He said while attending the Arkansas Municipal League (AML) conference last week, the 

City an honorable mention award.  It was from Arkansas Business in the category of 

tourism, development, and creative culture, for the downtown Plaza area.  

 He said the City was in recognition of its sesquicentennial (150 years) celebration and there 

would be different events happening throughout the year.  

 He said the work on the Plaza was ongoing and he hoped the restrooms would be in around 

March.  

 He made mention of how the City only spent 89% of the allocated resources given to them 

and that was due to the great work of each department head.   

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:36 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:55 PM, and the following action was taken: 

Motion to appoint Josh Potter as Interim City Attorney made by Director Brewer, Seconded by 

Assistant Mayor Roberts.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, Director 

Jewell, and Director Hart. 

Voting Nay: Director Harris 

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the motion approved.  

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, February 6, 2023  

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 6:57 PM. 

APPROVED this the 6th day of February 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $15,000.00 to the 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) 

Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson   

AGENDA DATE: 02/06/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $15,000.00 to the 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The American Rescue Act Fund was approved by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Board of Directors on December 20, 2021, with resolution 

2021-65. This budget allocated $972,090 in 2021 and the remaining 

$656,637 in 2022. Of the total $1,628,727, $243,786.30 has been spent. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to approve the reimbursement of 

$15,000.00 to the Texarkana Regional Airport for engineering services 

in connection with the Landside Development. As this would be 

considered a general governmental service, it is eligible for 

reimbursement due to the City receiving less than $10 million from the 

American Rescue Plan Act.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $15,000.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $15,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and invoice 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, allocated American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds remain available 

for use in accordance with applicable law and restriction; and 

WHEREAS, of the total ARPA funds allocated, $1,628,727.00, the total spent to 

date is $243,786.30; and 

WHEREAS, an eligible use of a portion of such funds is to reimburse the Airport 

Authority for $15,000.00 incurred in connection with Landside Development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the reimbursement described herein is approved and, further, 

all applicable City budgets are appropriately amended.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

     

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

      

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 

 

 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 

agreement with the City of Texarkana, Texas for Police Criminal 

Investigation Division (CID) services. (FIN) Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson and Police Chief Michael Kramm   

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Board approval is requested for the 2023 agreement with the City of 

Texarkana, Texas, for the shared position of CID Secretary. This service 

is provided by a Texarkana, Texas employee, and we pay half of the 

personnel costs for this position each year. Approval of this contract is 

recommended. This contract was executed by the City of Texarkana, 

Texas’ City Manager, David Orr.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $25,166.84 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $27,700.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and contract 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, previously entered into an 

agreement with the City of Texarkana, Texas for Police Criminal Investigation Division 

(CID) secretarial services; and   

WHEREAS, the agreement should be renewed in the form presented herewith 

including 2023 cost of $25,166.84; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an 

agreement with the City of Texarkana, Texas, for Police CID secretarial services in the 

amount of $25,166.84 or fiscal year 2023. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

 _____________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

__________________________________ 

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 

 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution reappointing City staff to the Personnel Policy 

Committee. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Reappoint staff to the Personnel Policy Committee 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Make appointments to various boards and commissions: 

Appointee:    Term:   
Eric Ethridge    01/06/2023---2025 

Marian Holder   01/06/2023---2025 

Linda Matthews  01/06/2023---2025 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Personnel Policy member list 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on various boards and commissions; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions:   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

Board/Commission:   Appointee:    Term: 

Personnel Policy Committee  Eric Ethridge    01/06/2023---2025 

Personnel Policy Committee  Marian Holder   01/06/2023---2025 

Personnel Policy Committee  Linda Matthews  01/06/2023---2025 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

 

  _____________________________ 

   Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 
 



PERSONNEL POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

2 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term 
    

Eric Ethridge 
Media Manager 

City Hall 

Resolution No. 2021-30   
Reappointment 

  

01/06/2021----2023  2 

    
Marian Holder 

Fire Administration 
City Hall  

Resolution No. 2021-30   
Reappointment  

 

01/06/2021----2023 4  

    
Linda Matthews 

City Manager’s Secretary 
City Hall 

 

Resolution No. 2021-30   
Reappointment  

 

01/06/2021----2023 4 

    
Dara Cornett 

Finance Officer 
TAPD 

Resolution No. 2022-18  
Reappointment 

 

01/06/2022----2024 5 

    
Tracie Lee 

Assistant Public Works 
Director 
City Hall 

Resolution No. 2022-18   
Reappointment 

 

01/06/2022----2024 5 

    
Jenny Narens 

Deputy City Clerk 
City Hall 

Resolution No. 2022-18  
Reappointment 

 

01/06/2022----2024 3 

    
    
    
    

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution appointing Joshua Potter as Interim City Attorney. 

(BOD)  

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appoint Interim City Attorney 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The position of City Attorney became open on February 1, 2023, with 

the resignation of George Matteson.  The City is currently conducting a 

search to fill the open position, but until then, an Interim City Attorney 

is needed for day-to-day operations. 

The Interim City Attorney will be compensated $6,667 monthly. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $6,667 monthly 

AMOUNT BUDGETED:  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 WHEREAS, the position of City Attorney for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

became open on February 1, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, the City is currently conducting a search to fill such open position; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to appoint an interim person to act as City Attorney 

until such position can be filled; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to appoint Joshua Potter, as Interim 

City Attorney on the following terms and conditions: Joshua Potter will be compensated 

$6,667 monthly; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that Joshua Potter is appointed as Interim City Attorney for the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, effective the 1st day of February 2023, upon the terms and 

conditions herein stated. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February 2023. 

 

       

                            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

      

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the Front Street Plaza Improvement Project. (TWU) Executive 

Director Gary Smith  

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E., Executive Director 

REQUEST: City Manager to enter into a contract for the Front Street Plaza 

Improvement Project. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

Front Street Plaza Improvement Project in an amount not to exceed 

$205,189.83. Bids were received ATTH 01 Tuesday, January 17, 2023, 

for the Front Street Plaza Improvement Project.  Two contractors bid on 

the project.  Kampco, Inc. of Texarkana, Arkansas, was the apparent low 

bidder with a low Base Bid of $205,189.83 ATTH 02.  This project 

consists of the placement of approximately 276 linear feet of six-inch 

(6”) water main, 285 linear feet of eight-inch (8”) sewer main, three 

concrete manholes, and all associated work and appurtenances. 

$75,000.00 was budgeted in the Utility’s 2022-2023 Budget; additional 

funds are available in the Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund.         

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $205,189.83 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $205,189.83 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$205,189.83 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, ATTH 01 Bid Summary, and ATTH 02 Bid Tabulation 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, upon advertisement, a low bid was submitted to Texarkana Water 

Utilities (TWU) by Kampco, Inc., of Texarkana, Arkansas, in the amount of $205,189.83 

for the Front Street Plaza Improvement Project; and   

WHEREAS, $75,000.00 was budgeted with the remainder available in the 2022-

2023 Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund; and   

WHEREAS, the City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter 

into a contract with Kampco, Inc., for the project and in the amounts described above and, 

further, the FY2023 Budget and TWU 2022-2023 Budget are amended as may be necessary 

to account for the corresponding appropriation and expenditure.    

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

           

       Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

      

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 



ATTH 02



ATTH 01 

  

 Bid Summary 
 
 

Front Street Plaza Improvements 
 

2:00 P.M. Tuesday, January 17, 2023 
 
 
 

                                    Base Bid   
 

1. RBIS, LLC   $ 233,783.01   
Texarkana, Arkansas   
 

2. Kampco, Inc.   $ 205,189.83   
Texarkana, Arkansas   
 
 
 
                    Time First Bid Opened:  2:00 P.M  
 
                    Number of Bidders:  2 
 
                    Apparent Low Bidder:  Kampco, Inc.  
 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

construction contract with Turkey Creek Farms for the construction of a 

fence enclosing Front Street Plaza. (PWD) Parks and Recreation 

Director Adam Dalby  

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation Department  

PREPARED BY: Adam Dalby, Parks and Recreation Director  

REQUEST: City Manager to enter into a construction contract with Turkey Creek 

Farms for the construction of a fence enclosing Front Street Plaza. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction 

contract with Turkey Creek Farms for the construction of a fence 

enclosing Front Street Plaza in the amount of one hundred twenty-one 

thousand dollars and zero cents. ($121,000.00) 

 

The City solicited sealed bids 01/01/2023 and 01/08/2023 with bids due 

01/27/2023. 

 

Two bids were received as listed below: 

Turkey Creek Farms - $121,000.00 

Richardson Fence and Patio - $152,120.27 

 

Authorization of this purchase meets all bidding requirements.  Funds 

were budgeted and are available for this purchase.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $121,000.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $121,000.00 (From Capital Projects) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend Board approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution, bid ads, and submitted bids 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, upon advertisement, a low bid in the amount of $121,00.00 was 

submitted by Turkey Creek Farms for the construction of a fence enclosing Front Street 

Plaza; and 

 WHEREAS, funds are budgeted and available; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized 

to enter into a contract with Turkey Creek Farms as described above and upon the terms so 

indicated.  

 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

      

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

      

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 

 

 











 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance confirming, updating, and correcting the annexation 

of certain territory to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas (Franks). (PWD) 

Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tyler Richards 

REQUEST: Annex through Block 8200 of Sanderson Lane 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: The legal description in Ordinance No. K-276 does not describe all lands 

that supporting documentation indicated were apparently intended to be 

annexed and these lands have been considered, viewed, mapped, 

governed, and treated as annexed into the City. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and Ordinance No. K-276 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE CONFIRMING, UPDATING 

AND CORRECTING THE ANNEXATION OF 

CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF 

TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS; DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. K-276, adopted June 20, 1988, the City 

annexed certain territory into the City of Texarkana, Arkansas; and  

WHEREAS, upon said, annexation of all City maps were correspondingly 

updated to include the lands specifically described by legal description in the Ordinance 

referenced above (being the 8000 and half of 8100 blocks of Sanderson Lane), and also the 

lands extending through the 8200 Block of Sanderson Lane; and 

WHEREAS, documentation submitted to the Planning Commission and the 

Board of Directors at the time of said annexation indicates that the intent and purpose of 

the proposed annexation was to annex through said Block 8200; and 

WHEREAS, since the time of annexation, the City has considered and governed 

all of said lands through the 8200 Block of the Sanderson Lane in the same manner as all 

other lands lying within the City of Texarkana, including, without limitation, enforcement 

and application of fire protection, police services, zoning regulations, building code 

requirements, subdivision and planning requirements, water and sewer services, and other 

City services; and  

WHEREAS, furthermore, since such time of annexation, the City has further 

annexed lands into the City beyond the 8200 Block of Sanderson Lane; and   

WHEREAS, in connection with more accurate GIS mapping capabilities, 9-1-1 

and emergency service improvements, and other technical advancements being 

undertaken, from time-to-time, at the local, county and state levels, it has come to the 

attention of the City that the legal description set forth in Ordinance No. K-276 does not 

describe all lands that supporting documentation indicates were apparently intended to be 



annexed and, moreover, that have thereafter having been considered, viewed, mapped, 

governed and otherwise treated as annexed; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to confirm, update, and correct the 

record to be consistent with governance and apparent intent, and to avoid any creation of 

an enclave; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

SECTION 1: It is confirmed that, in addition to the lands specifically described in 

Ordinance No. K-276, that the following described territory, located in Texarkana, Miller 

County, Arkansas, are deemed to have been included within, annexed by, and specifically 

described in said ordinance: 

 

Two tracts of land in the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4 

NE1/4) of Section 32, Township 14 South, Range 28 West, Miller County, 

Arkansas (Containing 14.979 acres of land, more or less) more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Tract 1:  The North Half of the North Half of the South Half of the Northeast 

Quarter of the Northeast Quarter (N1/2 N1/2 S1/2 NE1/4 NE1/4) of Section 

32, Township 14 South, Range 28 West, Miller County, Arkansas.  Subject 

to such rights as may be vested in the public for road along the East 

boundary line designated as Sanderson Lane: containing 4.993 acres of 

land, more or less. 

 

Tract 2:  The South Half of the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of the 

Northeast Quarter (S1/2 N1/2 NE1/4 NE1/4) of Section 32, Township 14 

South, Range 28 West, Miller County, Arkansas, containing 9.986 acres, 

more or less. 

 

SECTION 2. That the services previously extended to said lands as originally 

intended in the original annexation shall continue, and all previously assigned ward and 

zoning designations shall remain.   

SECTION 3: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, including without limitation, in order to avoid further confusion by the 

above-described situation and, further, avoid interruption of emergency services, and a 



separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is 

therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after its passage and approval.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

   

 

 _____________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 

















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards and 

commissions. [Airport Authority; Historic Commission; Library Board 

and Planning Commission.] (CCD)  

AGENDA DATE: February 6, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appoint members to various boards and commissions. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Make appointments/reappointments to various boards and commissions: 

 

Airport Authority  1 Vacancy 05/14/2022----2025 

 Robin Hickerson Term expired 

 Anderson Neal, Jr.   New applicant  

   

Historic District Commission 1 Vacancy  01/17/2021----2024 

 Greg Gallagher New applicant 

 2 Vacancies 01/17/2023----2026 

 David Ellison Term expired 

 M. Carmen Mauldin Term expired  

   

Library Board 2 Vacancies 01/15/2023----2029 

 Pamela Johnson New applicant  

   

Planning Commission 2 Vacancies 05/06/2022----2025 

 Randall Hickerson Term expired 

 Anderson Neal, Jr.  Term expired  
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 



APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Boards and Commission member lists, applications 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on various boards and commissions; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions:  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

 

Board/Commission: Appointee: Term: 

 

Airport Authority 

(only 1 vacancy) 

 

Robin Hickerson – term expired 

or 

Anderson Neal, Jr.  

 

05/14/2022---- 2025 

Historic District Commission 

 3-Vacancies 

 

Greg Gallagher 

David Ellison – term expired 

M. Carmen Mauldin – term expired 

 

01/17/2021----2025 

01/17/2023----2026 

01/17/2023----2026 

Library Board 

2-Vacancies 

 

Pamela Johnson 01/15/2023----2029 

 

Planning Commission  

2-Vacancies 

Randall Hickerson – term expired 

Anderson Neal, Jr.  – term expired 

05/06/2022----2025 

05/06/2022----2025 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

       

                               Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

      

Joshua Potter, Interim City Attorney 



AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

3 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

Robin Hickerson 

6504 Northern Hills Drive 

903-908-1814  

Resolution No. 2021-9 

Appointment 

05/14/2019----2022 1 6 

     

Joe Denmon 

10205 Hwy 296 

870-645-2548 

Resolution No. 2021-9 

Appointment  

05/14/2020----2023 1  

     

Clayton Roberts 

6612 Wuthering Heights 

870-773-9094 

Resolution No. 2021-9 

Appointment  

05/14/2020----2023 1 6 

     

Ray Abernathy  

2515 Sugarhill Acres Drive 

903-826-8214 

Resolution No. 2021-38 

Reappointment  

05/14/2021----2024 2 6 

     

 

















HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
Authorized by A.C.A. 14-172-201----212, and Texarkana Code 19-31----65 

3 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 
     

David Ellison 
2 Spring Valley Lane 

 832-545-3833 

Resolution No. 2022-32 
Appointment  

01/17/2020----2023 1 1 

     
M. Carmen Mauldin 

433 South Mosley Road 
903-798-2194 

Resolution No. 2021-36 
Appointment 

01/17/2020----2023 1 1 

     
VACANCY –  

 
 01/17/2021----2024   

     
Jamie Simmons 
600 Pecan Street 

870-330-1521 

Resolution No. 2021-36 
Reappointment  

01/17/2021----2024 5 2 

     
Danny R. Gordon 
804 East 12th Street 

870-773-2746 (home) 

Resolution No. 2021-36 
Reappointment 

 

01/17/2021----2024 2 3 

     
David Jones 

39 Brookside Drive 
903-277-5550 (home) 
870-774-3333 (work) 

Resolution No. 2022-32 
Reappointment 

01/17/2022----2025 4 1 

     
Natasha Crabbe 
4131 Union Road 

903-824-2970 

Resolution No. 2022-32 
Reappointment 

01/17/2022----2025 2 1 

     
Mary Beck 
City Planer 

HDC Ex – Officio 
870-779-4971 (work) 

N/A Term of 
Employment 

N/A N/A 

 









LIBRARY BOARD 

Authorized by A.C.A. 13-2-501---510 and Texarkana, Arkansas Code 12-16---19 

6 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

Vacancy   01/15/2017----2023   

     

Sarah Meredith  

Term Expired 

1901 Beech Street 

870-773-5423 

Resolution No. 2017-17 

Appointment 

 

01/15/2017----2023 3 4 

     

Linda Register 

3406 Water Oak Drive 

903-276-4838 

Resolution No. 2019-7 

Appointment  

 

01/15/2019----2025 1 6 

     

Junie Young 

3503 Tiffany Lane 

870-773-4139 

Resolution No. 2021-38 

Reappointment 

 

01/15/2020----2026 2 5 

     

Gary Nutter 

1203 Forest Acres Circle 

870-772-8091 

Resolution No. 2021-38  

Reappointment 

 

01/15/2020----2026 2 1 

     

     

 





Planning Commission  
 

Authorized by A.C.A. 14-56-404----408, and Texarkana, Arkansas Code 19-16----19 
3 – Year Terms 

 

 Appointment Term Date Terms Ward 
     

Anderson Neal, Jr. 
Vice Chairman 
7106 Tall Oaks 
501-655-1335 

an8613@gmail.com 

Resolution No. 2019-43 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2019----2022 2 6 

     
Randall R. Hickerson, DDS 

2805 Forest Avenue  
870-773-1603 home 
903-748-1603 cell 

phickerson@valornet.com 

Resolution No. 2019-43 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2019----2022 2 1 

     
Clyde “Boots” Thomas 
5807 Deerwood Drive 
870-773-6919 home 
903-908-4111 cell 

boots@cableone.net  

Resolution No. 2021-38 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2020----2023 8 6 

     
Bertha Dunn 

2704 East 15th Street 
870-773-8287 home 
903-277-8763 cell 

berthacallahan@windstream.net 

Resolution No. 2021-38 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2020----2023 4 3 

     
Adger Smith 

Chairman 
308 Meadows Road 

903-824-4924 
adgersperf@aol.com  

Resolution No. 2021-38 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2021----2024 6 3 

     
Mike Jones 

3702 Evergreen Drive 
870-773-7003 

Mikejones0825@aol.com  

Resolution No. 2022-24 
Appointment 

 

05/06/2021----2024  1 5 

     
Jason Dupree 

416 Meadows Road 
870-774-1925 home 
903-838-8574 work 
jdupr21@aol.com  

Resolution No. 2021-38 
Reappointment 

 

05/06/2021----2024 5 3 

 

mailto:an8613@gmail.com
mailto:an8613@gmail.com
mailto:phickerson@valornet.com
mailto:phickerson@valornet.com
mailto:boots@cableone.net
mailto:boots@cableone.net
mailto:berthacallahan@windstream.net
mailto:berthacallahan@windstream.net
mailto:adgersperf@aol.com
mailto:adgersperf@aol.com
mailto:Mikejones0825@aol.com
mailto:Mikejones0825@aol.com
mailto:jdupr21@aol.com
mailto:jdupr21@aol.com







	Top
	1.	service awards
	item_1_02062023_ccd_employee service awards

	2.	minutes
	item_02062023_ccd_minutes
	item_2_01172023_minutes

	3.	Airport Reimbursement
	item_02062023_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds
	item_3_02062023_fin_Resolution_Airport Reimbursement
	item_02062023_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds

	4.	2023 CID Secretary's Contract
	item_4_02062023_fin_CID Secretary's Contract
	item_4_02062023_fin_Resolution_CID Secretary
	2.6.23 - 2023 CID Secretary's Contract

	5.	Personnel Policy Committee
	item_02062023_ccd_personnel policy com
	item_5_02062023_ccd_Resolution_personnel com
	item_02062023_ccd_Personnel Policy Committee

	6.	interim city attorney
	item_8_02062023_bod_interim city attorney
	item_8_02062023_bod_Resolution_interim city attorney

	7.	Front Street Plaza Improvement Project.
	item_6_02062023_twu_Front Street Plaza Imp Agenda Summary
	item_6_02062023_twu_Resolution_Front Street
	Front Street Plaza Impr Bid Tab ATTH02
	Front Street Plaza Improvements Bid Summary ATTH01

	8.	Front St. Fence
	item_7_02062023_pwd_Front Street fence
	item_7_02062023_pwd_Resolution_Fence for Front Street
	item_7.1_02062023_pwd_bid ads and submitted bids

	9.	Sanderson Lane annexation
	item_9_02062023_pwd_Sanderson lane annexation
	item_9_02062023_pwd_Ordinance_Annexation re sanderson lane
	item_9_02062023_pwd_Sanderson lane annexation_K276

	10.	Boards and Commissions
	item_11_02062023_b&c
	item_11_02062023_b&c_Resolution
	item_7a_02062023_b&c_Airport Authority
	item_7a_02062023_b&c_Anderson Neal, Jr_12062022_Airport
	item_7a_02062023_b&c_Robin Hickerson_Airport_12142022
	item_7b_02062023_b&c_Historic District Commisison
	item_7b_02062023_b&c_Gregory Gallagher_HDC_10212022
	item_7b_02062023_b&c_M Carmen Mauldin_HDC
	item_7b_02062023_David Ellison_HDC
	item_7c_02062023_b&c_Library Board
	item_7c_02062023_b&c_Pamela Johnson_Library
	item_7d_02062023_b&c_Planning Commission
	item_7d_02062023_b&c_Anderson Neal, Jr_PC
	item_7d_02062023_b&c_Randy Hickerson_PC

	Bottom

